
 
Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 

11:00 a.m. | Friday, August 27th, 2021 
Hybrid: Hodson Hall 105, Saranac Lake Campus | Zoom link below 

 
I. Call to Order  

II. Approval July 27th, 2021 Minutes  
III. Liaison Reports  

o College Senate  
o NCCCAP   
o CSEA  

IV. College Reports  
o Board Chair 
o Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs 

 MSCHE Self-Study Update 
 Resolution | Initial Term Appointment 
 Resolution | Temporary Term Appointment 

o Vice President for Marketing & Enrollment Management  
 Resolution | Initial Term Appointment 

o Interim CFO 
 July 2021 Financials 

o Interim Associate Vice President of Student Affairs 
 Resolution | Initial Term Appointment 

o President 
 Resolution | Initial Term Appointment 

V. Representative Reports 
o NCCC Association  
o NCCC Foundation  

VI. Old Business  
VII. New Business  

VIII. Public Comment*  
IX. Executive Session  
X. Adjourn        

 
        An Executive Session of the Board of Trustees may be called pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officer’s Law to discuss the Medical, financial, credit or 
employment history of a particular person or corporation, or matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, suspension, 
dismissal, or removal of a particular person or corporation and collective bargaining negotiations conducted pursuant to Article 14 of the Civil Service Law.  (Public 
Officers Law §105).  
* Public Comment: Visitors are requested to sign in before the beginning of the meeting.  Provision is made at this point in the agenda for citizens of the community 
to make comments regarding any agenda item to be discussed at that meeting.  Citizens will not be recognized at any other time.  No person, not a member of the 
Board, shall speak for more than five (5) minutes.  The minutes shall show that privilege of the floor was granted and shall include a brief statement of the subject 
matter presented.  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Topic: Board of Trustees | Public Access 
Time: Aug 27, 2021 11:00 AM Eastern Time 
 
Join Zoom Meeting | https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88577592000?pwd=am16Ym03bFAvUXY0N0luY2tKTnlNZz09 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88577592000?pwd=am16Ym03bFAvUXY0N0luY2tKTnlNZz09


Meeting ID: 885 7759 2000 | Passcode: 024379 
One tap mobile | +16465588656,,88577592000#,,,,*024379# US (New York) 



Board of Trustees Minutes | July 29th, 2021  

 
Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes | July 29th, 2021 

Hybrid Meeting: CL-012 & Zoom 
 
Board Members Present: Steve Reed, Mark Moeller, Donna Wadsworth, Dan Kelleher, Pete Suttmeier, Mary Irene Lee, 
Jerry Griffin, and Jessica Kemp 

 
Others Present: Joe Keegan, Stacie Hurwitch, Sarah Maroun, Erik Harvey, Diana Fortune, Kyle Johnston, Dianna 
Trummer, Rob Rathbun, Chris Knight, Kim Irland 

Board Chair, Steve Reed, called the meeting to order at 11:06 a.m. 
 
Minutes 

• Pete Suttmeier made the motion to accept the June 24th, 2021 meeting minutes. Mary Irene Lee seconded the 
motion. The June 24th, 2021 meeting minutes were unanimously approved (8-0-0). 

 
College Senate 
Senate will not be meeting during opening week.  They will meet the second Friday of every month throughout the 
academic year. 
 
NCCCAP 
No report 
 
CSEA 
No report 
 
Board Chair Report 
No report 
 
Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs 
Sarah Maroun reported: 

• The College has completed the 6 room high flex installation.  Great job to Scott Harwood and his team for their 
work on the project as well as to our Facilities staff! 

• MSCHE have sent team roster of seven (7), essentially one team member per standard.  Draft will be submitted 
August 23rd, 2021  The Board spoke briefly of the pending itinerary that will be performed via Zoom in October 
2021.  It will be shared with the board once it becomes available.  Board/Joe discussion on potential questions in 
advance of the meeting. 

o Pete volunteered to review a draft prior to it being submitted in August. Joe requests a recommendation 
to perform mock dry-runs on questions and how the Board might respond.  The Board agreed that it 
would be a beneficial virtual meeting. 

o There was some discussion on professional development with the State schools; the Board discussed 
possible incentives for faculty to enroll.  It is item number one in the strategic plan and part of our middle 
states report. In addition, faculty are training on their own.  There may be faculty to join those events 
when next held in August.  There was discussion on P-Tech and the future of it as related to the College.   

 
Board moved to approve the following resolutions: (BULK) 
Mary Irene Lee made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the 



Board of Trustees Minutes | July 29th, 2021  

temporary appointment of Courtnee Davenport, to the full-time, 164-day, exempt appointment as Nursing Instructor 
for a one-year term for the 2021/22 academic year, at an annual salary of $43,250.  Pete Suttmeier seconded the 
motion.  The motion was unanimously approved (8-0-0) 
 
Mary Irene Lee made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the 
second temporary appointment of Melinda Fredenburgh, to the fulltime, 164-day, exempt appointment as Science 
Instructor for 2021/22 academic year at an annual salary of $44,602.  Pete Suttmeier seconded the motion.  The motion 
was unanimously approved (8-0-0) 
 
Mary Irene Lee made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the 
second temporary appointment of Tana Hare, to the full-time, 164-day, exempt appointment as the Director of the 
Nursing Program for the 2021/22 academic year at an annual salary of $60,836.  Pete Suttmeier seconded the motion.  
The motion was unanimously approved (8-0-0) 
 
Mary Irene Lee made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the 
temporary appointment of Luke Hudak, to the full-time, 190-day, exempt appointment as Coordinator of Dual 
Enrollment Initiatives for the 2021/22 academic year at an annual salary of $48,660.  Pete Suttmeier seconded the 
motion.  The motion was unanimously approved (8-0-0) 
 
Mary Irene Lee made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the third 
temporary appointment of Jamie Strough to the full-time, 164-day, exempt appointment as Science Instructor for 
the 2021/22 academic year at an annual salary of $44,6020.  Pete Suttmeier seconded the motion.  The motion was 
unanimously approved (8-0-0) 
 
Mary Irene Lee made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the third 
temporary appointment of Sarah Updegraft to the full-time, 164-day, exempt appointment as Nursing Instructor 
for the 2021/22 academic year at an annual salary of $48,660.  Pete Suttmeier seconded the motion.  The motion was 
unanimously approved (8-0-0) 
 
Vice President for Marketing and Enrollment Management  
Kyle Johnston reported: 

• Incoming student numbers are improving – intake number for new/transfer/readmits are ahead when 
compared to last year’s numbers.  To remain ahead the College needs to continue their efforts through August. 

• Several campaigns are rolling for Fall 2021.   

• The process to enroll students has turned into the ability to complete within one day.  The process has been 
streamlined and successful. 

• Outreach has been ventured through several avenues (online, paper, radio) 

• Marketing emails and campaigns have been tied together and allows for a greater chance of follow-ups. 

• Last year was a foundational year for starting campaigns and seeing the follow through. The “Time to Register” 
campaign will start this week and go through to the end of August. 

• Starting this week, Enrollment has been working on scheduling visits online, in person (by person), deployed a 
visit page, program presentation, Financial Aid visit.  Financial Aid is biggest barrier for students coming into 
college for the first time.  Campus visits are already happening on each campus. 

• The board discussed retention of students from first to second year (continuing students) and its current lag.  It 
is not a new trend; the College continues to market to those students as well because the College cannot 
assume they will return.  Campaigns will go to all current and potential students. Kyle stepped in to find a way to 
market to this cohort of students.  These students haven’t been marketed before but there is no base to use for 
comparison.  The College is looking to help these students see the return on their investment. 

• Board spoke of outreach process to the students who have not registered.  Registrar’s Office has been reaching 
out to these students to help them enroll.  There are barriers such as COVID, financials, and other hurdles.  

• The Board spoke about the nationwide uptick in enrollments and how the College is faring in comparison.  NCCC 



Board of Trustees Minutes | July 29th, 2021  

has been doing well the last couple semesters when compared to other community colleges. 

• A member of the Board noted that the Adirondack Foundation recently discussed academia in the region.  A 
recent event highlighted the hump in the North Country and surrounding towns in relation to thinking about 
higher education.  There was discussion of working with their foundation in helping potential students think 
about colleges. The traditional recruitment effort to high schools is continuing but the College needs to expand 
on outreach efforts.  The College stands by that the door is always open to anyone interested in enrolling into 
the College. 

• Guidance counselors in the region meet monthly.  It might be beneficial if a few enrollment folks could join one 
of the meetings.  Fall back positions – maybe there is a tide beginning to rise for NCCC.   

• Jerry Griffin spoke of rates of high school graduates and adults and their view on the college experience.  
Students are not having a successful experience when attending college away from home, things are changing 
due to COVID.  The focus has been on students from 2019 and moving forward; another micro-campaign 
designed for that cohort. 

• Jessica Kemp spoke of her experience with high school counselor and the visual presence of colleges.  Kyle 
expressed that there are numerous marketing materials given to area high schools so they can share with 
potential students. 

• Whatever the type of visit, NCCC will take it from there to ensure the potential students are seen and heard.  A 
physical presence with a person is also happening in the high schools. 

• It was discussed that a number of students desire to complete something- NCCC can create a message to that 
cohort to show that an experience with us could meet that desire. 

• Kyle explained the intake numbers will likely increase when compared to their strength over the last three 
semesters.  Especially with the inception of North Country Navigator – in the effort to help our students. 

 
Interim CFO: 
Erik Harvey reported: 

• June operating results with zero surprises.  The current forecast has not changed. 

• Joe Keegan and Erik Harvey presented the proposed College 2021-2022 budget to the College’s supporting 
counties of Essex and Franklin.  To date, they have been well received after presentation and discussion.  The 
College anticipates approval from the counties in the next couple weeks. 

• The June 2021 financials were presented.  Pete Suttmeier motioned for the NCCC Board of Trustees to approve 
the financials as they were brought to the floor.  Mary Irene seconded on the motion.  The motion was 
unanimously approved (8-0-0). 

 
Associate Vice President of Student Affairs 
No report 

 
 President: 
Joe Keegan reported: 

• Congratulations to Mark Moeller on continuing his appointment as a member of the board.  Requested the 
board to email Stacie their Board bios and pictures. 

• Strategic Plans continue with updates, there has been movement over the summer.   

• At this time there has been no update regarding potential grants from Congresswoman Stefanik’s office.   

• Selina LeMay Klippel’s position through the Perkins’s grant was approved and her work will continue to benefit 
the College. 

• COVID-19 reopening plans will need to be redrafted in relation to the new CDC guidelines regarding masking 
updates.  Open forum on Monday, August 2nd, 2021, with the campus community.  SUNY will follow suit with 
mandates for masking and vaccination.  Messages to students to encourage to vaccination have been sent.  
College will continue to address these new mandates the best of their ability. 

• JMZ scoping study contract has been signed.  Their team is reviewing the proposed plans and are anticipating a 
visit to the Campus later in August.  Dan Stec’s office has been contacted requesting a change in DASNY dollars 



Board of Trustees Minutes | July 29th, 2021  

to apply to other areas of need in the College. 

• NCCCAP union negotiations with the College are underway.  The College’s supporting counties of Essex and 
Franklin approved the agreement to rollover current contract. 

• Both Essex and Franklin meetings around the budget were supportive on the discussion around the proposed 
2021-2021 budget.  

• The board discussed the Academic Technology Coordinator position.  The main support of this position is online 
for faculty/staff in the hybrid model.   

• The Board discussed the six certifications offered by NCCC.  While they are offered there is still discussion on 
workforce development needs.  In order to offer a certification, the one stipulation is that there has to be 
opportunity for gainful employment in the area.  There is ongoing discussion on rural healthcare and the 
potential for NCCC to create additional certifications. 

o There was brief discussion on whether tele-working would change the face of gainful employment.  
Currently there is no shift with the NYS Education.   

 
Board moved to approve the following resolutions: 
Jerry Griffin made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the second 
temporary appointment of Matthew Trombly to the full time, twelve-month exempt position as IT Programmer/Analyst, 
for the 2021/22 academic year at an annual salary of $43,250.  Mary Irene Lee seconded the motion.  The motion was 
unanimously (8-0-0) 
 
NCCC Association: 
Rob Rathburn reported: 

• There have been a couple re-hire positions and new hire positions for the Association.  Maryssa Romeo, who 
started the position as the Associate Director of Residence Life and Housing yesterday.  Mary Riley seasonal 
position as bookstore clerk has started her work as well. 

• There are staff assembled to reopen the dining hall.  Three individuals from American Dining Creations have 
been rehired, plus five additional hires will join the team when the dining area opens.  There is anticipation to 
hire students 5-10 hours a week. 

• Saturday August 7th will kickoff the food service to cater to our Women’s Soccer team once they arrive to 
campus. 

• Housing demand is increasing, at this point there is not a problem to fill the rooms.  There are opportunities to 
double up in rooms and students are being sought out for their approval. 

• Book pick-up appointments have begun.  Curb side will turn into controlled access to keep within social 
distancing protocols. 

• Rob shared is overall confidence where the Association will be in serving the students when they arrive on 
campus. 

• At this time, students in the dorms will not be required to be vaccinated.  The Association will continue to listen 
to guidance from the FDA and CDC on potential and future mandates.  They are colleting data on who is 
vaccinated and addressing suites based on this information.  Though not mandated at this time, student 
vaccination is strongly encouraged.   

• The College’s 30-day vaccination campaign has begun though there are questions on what it exactly means for 
future students.  The message to the students has been done and it continues to be encouraged.  The Colleges 
supporting counties of Essex and Franklin have voiced they are both willing to offer vaccination clinics.  The 
board continued the conversation on vaccination status and mandated testing. 

 
NCCC Foundation: 
Diana Fortune reported: 

•  $42,000 has been granted additional scholarships for 44 students in the 2021-2022 academic year.  The board 
of trustees voiced overwhelming appreciation an support. 

 
Old Business 



Board of Trustees Minutes | July 29th, 2021  

None 
 
New Business 

• Election of office: 
o Current board chair, Steve Reed proposed that the board of trustees rethink the assignments in January 

of 2022. The thought is to stay the course through Middle States.  To date Steve Reed has held the 
position of Board Chair for 5 years.  The current boards Vice Chair has been held by Mark Moeller.  Jerry 
Griffin made a motion to hold position election to January 2022 as it was presented to the floor.  Mary 
Irene seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously approved (8-0-0). 

• Joe Keegan extended thanks for ongoing support of the College over the past year and half.  He extended his 
gratitude of the hard work and dedication of the faculty and staff as well.  The board expressed that its due to 
the leadership and relationships that Joe holds as the position of the president. 

 
Public Comment  
None 

 
Executive Session 
Pete Suttmeier made the motion to enter Executive Session at 12:30 p.m. in relation to collective bargaining 
negotiations conducted pursuant to Article 14 of the Civil Service Law; and the medical, financial, credit or employment 
history of a particular person or corporation, or matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, 
demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or removal of a particular person or corporation. Mary Irene Lee seconded 
the motion. The motion was passed unanimously (8-0-0).  Joe Keegan was invited to join the meeting at 12:30 p.m. 
 
Pete Suttmeier made a motion to adjourn executive session at 12:30 p.m. Mary Irene Lee seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously (8-0-0). 
 
Pete Suttmeier made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the 
promotion of Elaine Taylor-Wilde as it was brought to the floor.  Mary Irene Lee seconded the motion.  The motion was 
unanimously approved (8-0-0). 

 
Adjourn 
Pete Suttmeier made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mary Irene Lee seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously (8-0-0). The Board meeting was adjourned at 12:45 p.m.  
 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Stacie G. Hurwitch 
Assistant Secretary to the Board of Trustees 

 
8/27/2021 
Motion: 
Second:  
Action: 



 

 
Interim VPAA Report to the 

Board of Trustees 

August 27, 2021 
 
Please find the following report from the Academic Area below. 

  Academic Planning, Programs and Policies:  
• Academic Planning 

o Fall 2021: Faculty returned on Monday, August 23rd to begin prepping for the new 
semester.  With more on-campus classes this semester, we expect a livelier start. 

• Middle States 
o MSCHE Self-Study: We submitted the Self-Study document and supporting evidence in 

preparation for the virtual visit on October 4-6, 2021.  A seven-member team, led by Dr. 
Kristy Bishop will conduct meetings over the course of those three days. Additional 
participants include Dr. Terence Peavy, our Middle States liaison and Dr. Deborah 
Moeckel, SUNY Assistant Provost.   We expect to receive requests for more documents 
over the next six weeks prior to the virtual visit. 

• College Bridge: Registrations continue online for College Bridge this fall.  We would like to 
make some visits to our high schools later in the semester if COVID-19 conditions improve. 

 

  Grants and Experiments:  
Here is a brief update on our grants: 
 

o Second Chance PELL: Access to the facilities looked promising; however, it appears that 
we may need to run classes remotely again for the fall.  We did schedule in-person 
sections, so adjustments are being made as we get more information from the facilities. 

o Northern Borders Regional Commission Grant: Planning for non-credit course 
delivery is underway. No new updates.  

o PTECH: Our second PTECH cohort will be on campus for Fall 2021.  We expect five 
new freshman and eight returning sophomores. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

Sarah Maroun 
Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs  



NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
WHEREAS the VP of Academic Affairs recommends the initial 

term appointment of Summer Dorr, to the full-time, 
164-day, exempt appointment as Instructor for the 
2021/22 academic year, at an annual salary of 
$44,602.  

 
WHEREAS the President hereby concurs in this 

recommendation, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED  that the North Country Community College Board of 

Trustees hereby approves the initial term 
appointment of Summer Dorr, to the full-time, 164-
day, exempt appointment as Instructor for the 
2021/22 academic year, at an annual salary of 
$44,602.  

 
This position is currently funded in the 2021/22 
operating budget.   

 
 
2021/22  
MOTION:   
ACTION:   
Yeas:  
Nays:    
Abstentions:  
DATE:   



 
 

 SARANAC LAKE . MALONE . TICONDEROGA 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Office of Human Resources . 23 Santanoni Avenue . PO Box 89 . Saranac Lake . NY . 12983  

www.nccc.edu . 518-891-2915 x1209 

 
August 12, 2021 
 
Ms. Summer Dorr 
80 Main Street, Apt B 
Saranac Lake, NY 12983 
 
Dear Ms. Dorr: 
 
Pending approval by the North Country Community College Board of Trustees at their August 2021 
meeting, I am pleased to offer you an initial term, full-time, nine-month (164 days) exempt 
appointment as Humanities Instructor for the 2021-2022 academic year. Faculty members are 
expected to report on August 23, 2021.   
 
As a member of the North Country Community College Association of Professionals (NCCCAP) bargaining 
unit, your compensation and benefits are detailed in your collective bargaining agreement (CBA) 
between the College and NCCCAP.  Should you accept this appointment, your pay grade for this 
appointment is Step 8 on Schedule C of the 2021-2022 CBA, which is an annualized base salary of 
$44,602.  Your per-diem rate based on 164 days is $271.96. 
 
Professional staff members shall not be assigned to more than two campus locations without their 
consent.  Your base campus is Saranac Lake.  Your immediate supervisor/department chair is Bruce 
Rowe and your area supervisor is Sarah Maroun, Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs. 
 
To acknowledge the terms of your appointment, sign and return this Letter of Appointment no later 
than August 31, 2021. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Joe Keegan, 
President 
 
cc:  Personnel File / Payroll File 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________ 
Employee Signature     Date 
 



 

June 12, 2021 

Colleagues, hello. 

At present, I am finishing up my fourth year as a Temporary Full-Time Humanities Instructor with 
North Country Community College. Prior to the pandemic, I was teaching at Saranac Lake, Malone, 
Bare Hill and Franklin. These locations (just as each semester’s classes) prove to be unique 
environments, and I welcome the multifariousness and challenge.  
 

I have taught an array of humanities courses (e.g., composition, literature, film, philosophy, public 
speaking, drama), and so many (62 as of this summer)! I am an enthusiastic teacher with heaps of 
ideas. I consistently blend tried-and-true with innovation. My MA is in English and my MFA in 
Creative Writing, and, along with utilizing those degrees, I have years of experience in filmmaking, 
performance, multi-media art, on-air radio, journalism, and photography.  
 

I am comfortable navigating sensitive topics, e.g., racism, cultural pluralism, religion, improvisation. 
I nurture pro-voice, empathetic, and inclusive environments. I routinely encourage the awareness 
that persons interpret texts (e.g., books, situations, humans) based on an amalgam of learned 
material and lived experience. I help students navigate communication clashes by facilitating 
discussions that have us sift out the nuances and triggers; I help students seek to better understand 
persons whose ideas are other.  
 

Having taught TEFL in Chile, ESOL for refugees and asylees in Florida, years in medium-security 
prisons, and open-admission first year writing courses, I have observed people enter classrooms, 
maybe not knowing the same language as another, or disliking someone on sight, or for a slight, or 
sitting with concerns they are ill-equipped for college. With discernment, I endeavor to have all 
students sense acceptance by fostering a listening, question-asking group, with a common goal: to 
grow in openness and knowledge.  
 

I believe people want to have conversations in which they are permitted to rebound from and 
understand verbal fumbles (theirs and others). I have known too many students, already daily 
discouraged by hardships (e.g., language barriers, structural racism, past mistakes, finances), and so I 
aim for my courses to enlarge each student in some way.  
 

An incarcerated student once asked why I was teaching in a correctional facility; I replied because I 
am drawn toward marginalized populations. If asked again, I would elaborate that I learn as much as 
I teach each semester, and how I feel honored to aid, witness, and encourage my students’ academic 
brilliance and empathetic growth; this is true of experiences at each NCCC location where I have 
taught. 
 

NCCC is an institution that encourages growth, not just in its students; I would like to stay on. 

Thank you for your time. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Summer Dorr 
sdorr@nccc.edu, 315-261-2542 (cell) 

mailto:sdorr@nccc.edu


Dorr 1 
 

SUMMER DORR 
9189 US Highway 11 
Potsdam, NY 13676 

sdorr@nccc.edu/315-261-2542  
 

 

EDUCATION  
 

Master of Arts, English, University of Alaska Fairbanks, Fairbanks, Alaska, 2017  
 

Master of Fine Arts, Creative Writing, University of New Orleans, 2011 
(low residency program) 

 

TEFL certificate, Bridge-Lingetech, 2007  
 

Bachelor of Arts, Communication, Flagler College—St. Augustine, Florida, 2004  
(emphasis in Broadcast Journalism with a minor in Advertising)  
 
TEACHING EXPERIENCE 
 

Humanities Instructor, North Country Community College, NNY      2017-present 
(Adjunct from spring until fall 2017) 
 

DRA 233, Acting II, spring 2019 (accelerated) 
DRA 133, Acting I, spring 2018, fall 2019, spring 2020 (hybrid) 
ENG 220, Drama, spring 2021 (online) 
ENG 105, Introduction to Public Speaking, fall 2017 
ENG 102, Composition II, spring 2020 (hybrid) 
ENG 101, Composition I, summer 2021 (accelerated, online) 
ENG 100, Effective Writing & Critical Reading, F017x2, F2018, F2019x3, scheduled for fall 2021x2 
HUM 202, Film II: Aesthetics & Cultural Studies, spring 2019 
HUM 145, Wilderness in Literature, Culture, and Identity, F2019 (accelerated/hybrid), F2020 (online),   
                   scheduled for fall 2021 (accelerated, online) 
HUM 140, Pop Culture, fall 2018 (online) 
HUM 101, Special Topics: Coming of Age Literature and Film, spring 2018  
HUM 100, Intro to Film, spring 2020 (online) 
PHI 115, Intro to Ethics, spring 2019 (accelerated) 
PHI 110, World Religions, fall 2020 (online) 
 
 Second Chance Program, Correctional Facilities  

 

DRA 133, Acting I, spring 2020 
ENG 250, Nature Writing, summer 2021 (distance learning) 
ENG 135, Fantastic Literature, summer 2018x2 (accelerated) 
ENG 115, Modern Literature, spring 2020x2 
ENG 108, Introduction to Creative Writing, fall 2017x2  
ENG 105, Public Speaking, summer 2017x2, spring 2019x2 
ENG 102, Composition II, SP2018, SU2018, SP2018, SU2018, F2019 
ENG 101, Composition I, F2017, SU2018, SU2019, SP2020, SP2021x2 (distance), SU2021 (distance)  
ENG 100, Effective Writing & Critical Reading, SP2017, SU2017, F2018, F2020, SU2021 (distance) 



Dorr 2 
 

HUM 246, World Mythology, summer 2020x2 (accelerated, distance learning, and one partially online) 
HUM 101, Special Topics: Coming of Age Literature and Film, spring 2018x2  
HUM 101, Avant Garde/Experimental/Innovative Literature, fall 2020x2 (distance learning) 
HUM 100, Intro to Film, fall 2018, spring 2019 
PHI 140, Meanings of Life, spring 2021x2 (distance learning) 
PHI 115, Intro to Ethics, summer 2019x2 (accelerated) 
 
Adjunct Instructor, State University of New York at Canton          2016-2017  
ENGL 309, Journalism, spring 2017 
ENGL 101, Composition and the Spoken Word, fall 2016x2, spring 2017  

 
Adjunct Instructor, State University of New York at Potsdam          2015-2017  
COMP 309, Screenwriting I (Independent Filmmaking), 4 credits, spring 2017  
COMP 302, Fiction Workshop I (Novel Writing), 4 credits, spring 2017  
COMP 202, Introduction to Creative Writing, 4 credits, spring 2016, fall 2016  
COMP 101, Writing & Critical Thinking, 4 credits, fall 2015x2, spring 2016, fall 2016 
LITR 100, Introduction to Literature, 3 credits, fall 2016      
                                                                                                    
Teaching Assistant, University of Alaska Fairbanks           2014-2015  
ENGL 111, (solo instructed) Introduction to Academic Writing, fall 2014, spring 2015  

 

Writing Tutor, UAF’s Writing Center & Rural Student Services—Alaska, 2005-06; 2014-15  
ESOL Instructor (for refugees and asylees), Catholic Charities of Jacksonville—Florida, 2012  
ESOL Instructor, One English Academy—Santiago, Chile, 2008  
TEFL Teacher (for fifth-eighth graders), Quintana Mansilla—Coyhaique, Chile, 2007  
 
MEDIA and THEATRE EXPERIENCE  
 

Actor, Ponderer/Narrator, in the short film Their Chapter, 2021 
Actor, Fantastical Character, in the short film And Then Okay, 2019 
Actor, Pattie, in Kimberly Akimbo (a play), Upper Jay Art Center, performances in July 2018 
Featured Artist/Contributor, a five-photo spread, in Blueline magazine, Vol. 39, spring 2018  
Videographer/Photographer, Emmaus— (various towns in) India, 2017  
Freelance Writer/Photographer, Juneau Empire, a daily newspaper—Juneau, Alaska, 2014  
Videographer/Photographer, Project for Hope, a nonprofit—Guatemala, 2014 
Videographer/Photographer, 12x12 Love Project, a nonprofit—Guatemala, 2012-2013, 2014  
Contributing Writer/Photographer, Biddeford-OOB-Saco Courier—Maine, 2013 
Videographer/Grant Writer, Catholic Charities of Jacksonville—Florida, 2013  
Music Host, North Country Public Radio—Northern New York, 2010-2011  
Radio DJ, WPDM/WSNN—Potsdam, New York, 2009  
Account Executive/Production/Voice-Over Talent, KFMG & KSRJ, Juneau, Alaska, 2005  
Staff Writer, Watertown Daily Times, Northern New York, 2004-2005  
 
CAMPUS SERVICE and CONFERENCES 
 

—Curriculum Committee Member, Humanities Dept. rep, NCCC, 2020-present 
—Creator and maintainer of NCCC Humanities’ Department Instagram page, 2019-present 
—Senate Vice Chair and /or Voting Member, NCCC, 2018-present 



Dorr 3 
 

—Drama Club Advisor, Saranac Lake Campus, NCCC, 2018-present  
   - “The Strange Case of Brenda Wolowitz,” a two-act play, performed live, spring 2018 
   - “NoCo Film Festival,” the first annual short film and live performance event, spring 2019 
—Diversity Task Force Member, North Country Community College, 2017-present   
—Student Advisor, North Country Community College, 2017-present   
— Presenter, Their Chapter, short film at the “Circus and Sideshow Culture II: Locating the ‘Other’ in 
Liminal Spaces and Exoticism” section of the Popular Culture & American Culture Association 
Conference, online, June 3, 2021 
—Designed a colleague’s webpage and maintain/update site (susanhofferart.com), 2020-2021 
—Organized a “(Dead) Wilderness Writers” reading event at NCCC, Oct. 30, 2019 
—Co-Presented “Avoiding the Netflix and YouTube Spiral,” for NCCC orientation, fall 2019 
—Attended the SUNY Developmental English Learning conference, Syracuse, NY, Feb. 2019 
—Presented an original fiction piece at a “Faculty Reading Series,” SUNY Potsdam, 2016  
 
COMPLETED WORK  
 
Films 
—Their Chapter, short film screened in the “Circus and Sideshow Culture II” section of the 2021 
Popular Culture & American Culture Association Conference 
—And Then Okay, short film, co-wrote and directed, 2019. An official selection in the Lake  
Placid Film Festival, October 2019 
—Refugees in Adjust, a short documentary film, sponsored by Catholic Charities of  
Jacksonville, FL, 2018 
—Dissection of an Olive (a produced, feature-length film), director, 2010 
 
Articles 
— Fiction Review: “Effects of Kept Secrets,” regarding the novel Return to Tamarlin, for Antipodes: a 
global journal of Australian & New Zealand Literature, Volume 33/Number 1, June 2019. 
 
Showcased Art (photo, mixed media, song) 
— “Dragonfly” and “Rising,” mixed media art, featured in BluSeed Studio’s Juried “One  
Earth!” show, Saranac Lake, June 2019 
— "Don't Be Scared," mixed media art featured in Lake Placid Center for the Arts, Juried Show, Lake 
Placid, NY, September-November 2018 
— “In a Moment,” featured photo, Don’t Take Pictures (online), July 2018 
— “Life” and “Another Life,” mixed media art, featured in BluSeed Studio’s Juried “Abstraction”  
show, Saranac Lake, June 2018 
— “Songbird” and “In Autumn,” mixed media art, featured in Northwind Fine Arts Juried Show, 
Saranac Lake, NY, May 2018 
— “Before a Change” and “Talking to God,” mixed media art, featured in the Adirondack  
Artists Guild Juried Show, Saranac Lake, NY, March-April 2018   
— “Hobbled” (co-writer) and “Here and Not Now,” (writer), songs, produced and performed by  
William Nein, 2008 and 2017 
— “Transition” (a two-page photo), published in SHOTS magazine, Autumn 2017  
— “December Solstice” (a photograph series), published in Birch Magazine, Winter 2014  
  

https://muse.jhu.edu/article/763243/summary


Dorr 4 
 

WORKS IN PROGRESS  
 

— Make Pretend Life, a novel 
— Direction from Jude and Addie, a web series 
— "The Perimeters of Familial Affection, a literary example with The Sooterkin,” an article 
 
 
REFERENCES   
 

Shir Filler, Professor of English at NCCC, Former English Department Chair, Senate Chair, 
sfiller@nccc.edu, 518-891-2915, ext. 1249, 518-637-9251(mobile) 
 
Dr. Donald McNutt, Associate Professor at SUNY Potsdam, Former English & Communication 
Department Chair, Blueline Editor, mcnuttdj@potsdam.edu, 315-267-2005, 315-265-2752 (mobile) 
 
Dr. Richard Carr, Professor of English at UAF, Former English Department Chair, UAF Writing Center 
Director, rscarr@alaska.edu, 907-474-6361  
 
Dr. Stacey Mascia-Susice, Professor of English at NCCC, smascia@nccc.edu, 518-354-5231 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



















A few commentary excerpts from NCCC student evaluations:  
 
“[Her] strengths included the encouragement of reading and creative thinking, so that students can 
apply these skills into other classes.” 

--ENG 102, Composition II, Malone, spring 2020  
 
“Ms. Dorr is very respectful and comes to work with high energy ready to teach each class. Positive 
vibes and she makes learning fun.” 

—DRA 133, Acting I, Bare Hill, fall 2019  
 
“Asks questions of everyone and feels out the atmosphere of everyone in class. Then decides what 
way to teach for the day. Straight forward teacher in getting everyone involved in the material being 
taught. Also helped me to stretch my limits [re:] doing things that I wasn’t comfortable doing before. 
Thanks for making the class eventful.” 

—DRA 133, Acting I, Bare Hill, fall 2019  
 
“I never really knew what Ethics was and took this course to broaden my horizons. It has definitely 
opened my mind a bit more and made me aware of a lot of things. I am very glad [I] took this 
course. Miss Dorr is a very knowledgeable person and communicates very well. I overall have 
enjoyed this class very much!”  

—PHI 115, Ethics, Malone, spring 2019  
 
“Expanded my knowledge of screen work and movies.”  

 

—HUM 202, Film: Aesthetic and Cultural Studies, Saranac Lake, spring 2019  
 
“Mrs. Dorr was great[; she] gets you to become more confident and be more bold. I enjoyed this 
class a lot.”  

—DRA 233, Acting II, Saranac Lake, spring 2019  
 
“Ms. Dorr is a very wonderful intellectual instructor. She loves her job in teaching and taught me 
how to be confident and comfortable to speak in front of an audience.”  
 

—ENG 105, Public Speaking, Bare Hill, spring 2019  
 
“Very outspoken person [who] through a very unique way of persuasion encourages students to 
engage in discussions, while providing critical thinking opportunities. I believe this professor to be[:] 
very articulate and professional in her career, while having limited resources in order to conduct 
classroom studies.”  

—HUM 100, Intro to Film, Franklin, spring 2019  
 
“Ms. Dorr is super knowledgeable in writing. I have bec[o]me more confident in speaking because 
of Ms. Dorr. The material (reading) was very thought provoking and I learned to appreciate 
literature. She brings out the hidden talent in people. We have great in class discussions on a range 
of topics. She also has a great sense of humor. Her assignments [are] a little intense but effective. 
Great!”  

—ENG 102, Composition II, Bare Hill, spring 2018  
 



“[T]he instructor does an excellent job to broaden the mind[s] of the students. I find this course to 
be a journey in understanding the purpose of my own life. When I [had a] coming of age moment. 
The instructor helped me to understand life in areas we don’t normally search for understanding[.] 
[T]his is a great course. The techniques of educating used by this instructor assist in bring out the 
best in a person.”  

—HUM 101, Special Topics: Coming-of-Age Literature, Bare Hill, spring 2018  
 

“This course was unlike any other class I’ve taken so far. Discussing the required texts really made 
me aware of the meanings of coming-of-age and human existence.”  

 

—HUM 101, Special Topics: Coming-of-Age Literature, Malone, spring 2018  
 
“Appreciates hard workers and promote[s] ways to get more out of every student. Very smart 
instructor.”  

—HUM 101, Special Topics: Coming-of-Age Literature, Franklin, spring 2018  
 
“One of my favorite teachers[;] she always was interested in the subject and wanted the whole class 
to pass.”  

—ENG 100, Effective Writing & Critical Reading, Saranac Lake, fall 2017  
 

“[G]reat teacher, can tell she cares about the class and the students.”  
 

— Effective Writing & Critical Reading, Saranac Lake, fall 2017 
 
 























 
 

23 Santanoni Ave. * P.O. Box 89 * Saranac Lake, NY 12983 * (518) 891-2915 

 

June 12, 2021 

Dear Colleagues: 

I am writing to highly recommend Summer Dorr for a continuing appointment as a full-time Humanities 
instructor. I consider hiring Summer as an adjunct in the Second Chance Pell program to be one of my greatest 
accomplishments as chair of the Humanities Department. It is hard to describe the energy and creativity she has 
brought to the job and to all of us who work with her. As a full-time instructor for the past four years, she has 
had even more opportunity to teach and inspire.  

In the classroom, Summer displays a rare mix of professionalism and personal care for students. She describes 
herself as “pro-voice”, encouraging all students to speak and write their true thoughts, but she is also able to 
gently guide them to doing so in an appropriate manner. She is not an easy teacher. As one student wrote, “Her 
assignments are a little intense but effective.” Another wrote that Summer “appreciates hard workers and 
promotes ways to get more out of every student.” 

Most students also comment on how knowledgeable Summer is and how that knowledge has helped them learn 
things they never thought they could. One of the above students also wrote, “She brings out the hidden talent in 
people.” I have to say that this is true not only for her students but for everyone around her. She has shanghaied 
friends and colleagues as well into acting, modeling, artmaking, and writing, pushing many of us well beyond 
our comfort zones. 

In one of Summer’s stellar evaluations, current Department Chair Bruce Rowe wrote that we were all in awe of 
how much Summer can accomplish in a day – teaching an overload of classes in multiple locations and 
modalities (and doing it well); advising students, not just academically but in the Drama Club; performing as an 
actor herself; writing; and making art, among other creative pursuits. She is not satisfied with simply inspiring 
and teaching her students. Her encouragement has motivated several of us in the department to return to our own 
creative work, and we meet weekly to write and share our writing. I can’t speak for everyone, but this has 
rejuvenated my commitment to writing and has inspired me to publish several pieces of my own, which has also 
renewed my teaching. I can only imagine what it must be like to be one of her students.  

In sum, I have to highly recommend my wonderful colleague Summer Dorr for this full-time position. She has 
proven herself in the classroom and out. In addition to everything described above, she has also served as Senate 
vice chair for the past two years, bringing her unique, “pro-voice” perspective to the executive committee; and 
she has been a creative idea-giver on the Diversity Task Force as well. She has helped to promote the humanities 
with her beautiful photographs of faculty members on the bulletin board in Mulholland Hall as well as by 
creating an Instagram page for the department to attract more students to our course offerings. She established 
and produced the “NoCo Film Festival” on campus, featuring films by students and alumni, and she connected 
the Humanities Department and our students with the Lake Placid Film Festival.  

The above is a woefully incomplete catalog of all that Summer has brought to NCCC. It seems that most of the 
28 hours she manages to squeeze into every day are devoted to the cultivation of others’ talent and creativity, 
whether those others are her students, her colleagues, or her friends. I can’t even imagine the college without her 
bright light shining in it! 

Thank you for your consideration.  

Sincerely,  

 

  

Shir Filler 
Professor of English 
College Senate Chair 







NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
WHEREAS the Interim VP of Academic Affairs recommends the  

temporary appointment of Robin McGrath to the full-
time, 164-day, exempt appointment as Business 
Instructor for the 2021/22 academic year at an 
annual salary of $43,250, 

 
WHEREAS the President hereby concurs in this 

recommendation, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED  that the North Country Community College Board of 

Trustees hereby approves the  temporary 
appointment of Robin McGrath to the full-time, 164-
day, exempt appointment as Business Instructor for 
the 2021/22 academic year at an annual salary of 
$43,250.  

 
This position is currently funded in the 2021/22 
operating budget.  In accordance with the current 
NCCCAP agreement Article VII-Appointment and 
Promotions, this appointment will expire at the 
conclusion of the 2021/22 academic year and will 
not be renewed. 

 
 
2021/22 
MOTION:   
ACTION:   
Yeas:  
Nays:    
Abstentions:  
DATE:   



 
 

 SARANAC LAKE . MALONE . TICONDEROGA 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Office of Human Resources . 23 Santanoni Avenue . PO Box 89 . Saranac Lake . NY . 12983  

www.nccc.edu . 518-891-2915 x1209 

 
August 24, 2021 
 
Mrs. Robin McGrath 
154 Lake Road 
Putnam Station, NY 12861 
 
Dear Mrs. McGrath: 
 
Pending approval by the North Country Community College Board of Trustees at their August 2021 
meeting, I am pleased to offer you a temporary, full-time, nine-month (164 days) exempt 
appointment as Business Instructor for a one-year term during the 2021-2022 academic year.  
 
As a member of the North Country Community College Association of Professionals (NCCCAP) bargaining 
unit, your compensation and benefits are detailed in your collective bargaining agreement (CBA) 
between the College and NCCCAP.  Should you accept this appointment, your pay grade for this 
appointment is Step 7 on Schedule C of the 2021-2022 CBA, which is an annualized base salary of 
$43,250.  Your per-diem rate based on 164 days is $263.72. 
 
Professional staff members shall not be assigned to more than two campus locations without their 
consent.  Your base campus is Ticonderoga.  Your immediate supervisor/department chair is Kim 
Duffey, Associate Professor, and your area supervisor is Sarah Maroun, Interim Vice President for 
Academic Affairs. 
 
To acknowledge the terms of your appointment, sign and return this Letter of Appointment no later 
than September 3, 2021. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Joe Keegan, 
President 
 
cc:  Personnel File / Payroll File 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________ 
Employee Signature     Date 
 







 
Vice President of Marketing and Enrollment  

Report to the Board of Trustees 
Created August 20th, 2021 

 

Enrollment and Financial Aid Team Updates: 

• Major project updates: 
o SLATE CRM (Customer Relationship Management): We’re now sending all of our email campaigns 

out of Slate and are monitoring the effectiveness on all of them.  We have seen some good response 
through these emails and recently had 9 students complete their enrollment within 24 hours of 
receiving their LastChance2Enroll email.  This is a good start to build from. 

o OMNI CMS (Content Management System): Most of our current work has been helping staff and 
faculty get everything updated within their content areas prior to the semester start.  We’ve also 
been helping to get our web presence ready for the upcoming Middle States visit.  We do not start 
any new projects in August because we need to be responsive to short-turnaround requests for the 
upcoming semester.  

o North Country Navigator: No new updates but we will circle back to this project after the semester 
starts to see where we did well and did not-so-well to make further improvements.   

• The Enrollment Team has been busy following-up on inquiries (leads) and applications.  We are a bit short-
handed this year compared to past years but our new technologies and processes are helping us to do more 
with less human resources.  This summer’s intake numbers have out-paced last year so we hope that trend 
continues through the first week of class.  We also have been looking at the fall visit/fair schedule and most 
are once again up-in-the-air with new precautionary measures coming.  It looks like travel will be very 
limited as some of the scheduled college fairs are already being canceled.  

• The Financial Aid team is busy as always but we have once again brought in a retired FA employee to help 
out with the load.  She will help us over the course of the next two months to ensure we can continue to 
provide same-day-service (processing and replies) to all students. 

Marketing and Web Team Updates: 

• The Entrepreneurship Certificate (www.nccc.edu/business) campaign has recently concluded. This campaign 
(which also features the rest of the business programs) performed well as the site traffic and click-through 
rates were stronger than most other campaigns.  The Fall campaign (www.nccc.edu/fall) recently gave way 
to the “LastChance2Enroll” campaign which will run right up to the first week of classes. 

• We’ve continued work on the “Athletics Re-Branding Project” utilizing feedback from our shares along-the-
way.  We’re down to 3 enhanced designs that will be presented to our college community and other external 
partners on Friday the 27th @ 2PM.  Once finalized we will work on secondary logo options, marketing pieces 
and signage. 

• The North Country Live team is very close to having the sessions finalized for this upcoming fall series.  We 
are on track to start our promotional efforts in September to get the word out in our communities.  
 

 

 

 

http://www.nccc.edu/business
http://www.nccc.edu/fall


 
 

Application Pipeline 

 

 

Enrollment Pipeline 

 

 

New “On-Call Advising” 

 



 

      

 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
WHEREAS the VP of Marketing and Enrollment recommends the 

initial term appointment of Amy Tuthill to the full time, 
twelve-month exempt position as Associate Director of 
Recruitment for Adult Learners, for the 2021/22 
academic year at an annual salary of $59,484, 

 
WHEREAS the President hereby concurs in this recommendation, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED  that the North Country Community College Board of 

Trustees hereby approves the initial term appointment 
of Amy Tuthill to the full time, twelve-month exempt 
position as Associate Director of Recruitment for Adult 
Learners, for the 2021/22 academic year at an annual 
salary of $59,484. 

 
This position is currently funded in the 2021/22 
operating budget.   

 
 
2021/22 
MOTION:   
ACTION:   
Yeas:  
Nays:    
Abstentions:  
DATE:   



 
 

 SARANAC LAKE . MALONE . TICONDEROGA 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Office of Human Resources . 23 Santanoni Avenue . PO Box 89 . Saranac Lake . NY . 12983  

www.nccc.edu . 518-891-2915 x1209 

August 12, 2021 
 
Ms. Amy Tuthill 
8030 State Route 3 
Vermontville, NY 12989 
 
 
Dear Ms. Tuthill: 
 
Pending approval by the North Country Community College Board of Trustees at their August 2021 
meeting, I am pleased to offer you an initial term, full-time, twelve-month (261 days) exempt 
appointment as Associate Director of Recruitment for Adult Learners for the 2021-2022 academic 
year.   
 
As a member of the North Country Community College Association of Professionals (NCCCAP) bargaining 
unit, your compensation and benefits are detailed in your collective bargaining agreement (CBA) 
between the College and NCCCAP.  Should you accept this appointment, your pay grade for this 
appointment is Step 19 on Schedule C of the 2021-2022 CBA, which is an annualized salary of $59,484.   
 
Professional staff members shall not be assigned to more than two campus locations without their 
consent.  Your base campus is Saranac Lake.  Your immediate and area supervisor is Kyle Johnston, 
VP of Marketing and Enrollment. 
 
To acknowledge the terms of your appointment, sign and return this Letter of Appointment no later 
than August 31, 2021. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Joe Keegan, 
President 
 
cc:  Personnel File / Payroll File 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________ 
Employee Signature     Date 
 























SARANAC LAKE | MALONE | TICONDEROGA 

North Country Community College 
Interim CFO’s Report to the Board of Trustees 

August 27, 2021 

Greetings, 
As always, I hope this report finds you well.  This month’s report will again be brief and simply present 
the July operating results, a final projection for 2020-21, and a quick update on the 2021-22 budget.   

I would like to ask for the board’s approval of the July financial statements, included below, for the 
month ending July 31, 2021. 

The 2020-21 forecast has moved to a surplus of $320K vs. the last forecast that projected a breakeven 
scenario.  The surplus is related to 1) $65K higher summer tuition and fee revenue than projected 
coupled with less negative revenue adjustments than usual, 2) $50K invoicing a higher chargeback rate to 
counties as approved by the SUNY Chancellor, directly related to the 5% reduction in NYS aid, and 3) 
$200K in labor and benefits savings over what was projected.  We are looking into why salaries were
$140K lower than anticipated over the summer.  Medical and Retirement closeouts are coming is slightly 
better than projected.  On a high level the college’s revenue for 2020-21 will be essentially flat to budget 
and expenses were reduced by $370K during the pandemic.  The fund balance is now expected to finish 
on August 31 at $4.6 million maintaining a 31% of normal net operating cost ratio.

The 2021-22 budget was approved by both Essex and Franklin counties and is now being sent onto 
SUNY for their consolidation and approval process.   There were no public comments or questions at 
either county hearing. 

Best regards, 

Erik Harvey 
Interim CFO 



 

 
North Country Community College 

Sponsored by Franklin and Essex Counties 
 

OPERATING FUND FINANCIAL REPORT 
As of July 31, 2021 

 
SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

August 27, 2021 
 

ERIK HARVEY 
Interim CFO 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Current Year Prior Year Current Year Annual YTD 19-20 Actual % of

Actual Actual Inc (Dec) Budget Actual M (L) Budget

Assets Revenues

Cash 4,049,714$     3,906,597$     143,118$        

Accounts Receivable-Students 273,360          (84,754)           358,114          Tuition & Fees 5,330,393$     6,161,353$     830,959$          116%

Due From NCCC Association 445,761          274,115          171,646          Sponsors' Contribution 2,380,000       2,177,500       (202,500)           91%

Due From NCCC Foundation (Contributions) 898,001          1,064,645       (166,644)         Chargebacks 695,600          757,770          62,170               109%

Due From Other Funds 783,288          609,530          173,758          Out-of-State Tuition 747,053          420,584          (326,469)           56%

Due From Governments (State & Fed Fin Aid) 653,486          746,085          (92,599)           State Aid 4,050,609       3,859,437       (191,172)           95%

Prepaid Expenses 60,978             95,404             (34,426)           Contributions 1,153,500       1,070,585       (82,915)              93%

Total Assets 7,164,588$     6,611,622$     552,966$        Total Revenues 14,357,155$   14,447,228$   90,073$             101%

Liabilities Expenditures

Accounts Payable (14,751)$         (8,219)$           (6,532)$           

Payroll & Benefits Liabilities (109,944)         122,646          (232,589)         Salaries 7,134,020$     6,179,018$     955,002$          87%

Due to NCCC Association (Room, Meals, Books) -                       4,680               (4,680)             Payroll Taxes 545,752          423,413          122,339             78%

Due to NCCC Foundation (Rent) 265,983          489,587          (223,604)         Medical 2,057,012       1,699,022       357,990             83%

Due to Other Funds 60                    120                  (60)                   Retirement 620,050          587,769          32,282               95%

Due to Retirement 325,652          393,530          (67,878)           Other 107,535          131,784          (24,249)              123%

Compensated Absences 289,672          256,362          33,310             Equipment 34,050             24,916             9,134                 73%

Other Liabilities 284,467          303,935          (19,467)           Facility Leases 1,448,480       1,422,635       25,845               98%

Utilities 301,500          237,778          63,722               79%

Total Liabilities 1,041,141$     1,562,641$     (521,500)$       Maintenance 167,150          116,320          50,830               70%

Office & General Supplies 69,810             31,871             37,939               46%

Month End Equity 6,123,447$     5,048,981$     Advertising 206,050          118,884          87,166               58%

Professional Services 118,200          101,995          16,205               86%

Total Liabilities & Equity 7,164,588$     6,611,622$     Information Technology 291,370          275,503          15,867               95%

Library & Instructional Supplies 347,510          205,400          142,110             59%

Fund Balance Summary Scholarships 485,000          777,022          (292,022)           160%

Prelim Fund Balance as of 09/01/20 4,283,578$     Travel 101,550          3,661               97,889               4%

Estimated 20-21 Surplus (Deficit) 319,830$        Property & Liability Ins. 145,000          108,607          36,393               75%

Projected Fund Balance as of 09/01/21 
1

4,603,408$     Miscellaneous 207,817          264,621          (56,804)              127%

Total Expenditures 14,387,856$   12,710,218$   1,677,639$       88%

Operating Surplus (Deficit) (30,701)$         1,737,011$     1,767,712$       -5758%

Non-Operating Activity -                   102,859          102,859             NA

Total Fund Surplus (Deficit) (30,701)$         1,839,870$     1,870,571$       -6093%

North Country Community College

Balance Sheet

JULY 31, 2021

North Country Community College

Revenues & Expenditures

JULY 31, 2021

1 
GAS 75 is an accounting and financial reporting provision requiring government employers to 

measure and report "Other Post-Employment Benefits".  Currently, NCCC would be responsible for 

$15,856,548. 

BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL



FTE

In-State 575                  581                  6                       1%

Out of State 60                    31                    (29)                   -92%

In/Out of State FTE 635                  612                  (23)                   -4%

Concurrent Enrollment 250                  234                  (16)                   -7%

Core Operating FTE 885                  847                  (38)                   -5%

Pell Prison Program 165                  133                  (32)                   -24%

Total FTE 1,050               980                  (70)                   -7%

Unrestricted Fund   (in thousands)

Revenues

Tuition 5,107$             5,377$             270$                5%

Fees 1,210               1,175               (35)                   -3%

Sponsor's Contribution 2,380               2,380               -                   0%

Chargebacks to Other Counties 696                  758                  62                    9%

State Aid 4,051               3,846               (205)                 -5%

Contributions & Other Income 1,154               1,128               (26)                   -2%

Reserve for Bad Debt (239)                 (325)                 (86)                   36%

Total Revenues 14,357            14,339            (18)                   0%

Expenditures

Salaries 7,134               6,763               (371)                 -5%

Payroll Taxes 514                  464                  (51)                   -10%

Medical 2,025               1,853               (172)                 -8%

Retirement 600                  641                  42                    7%

Other 191                  158                  (34)                   -18%

Equipment 34                    30                    (4)                     -13%

Facility Leases 1,448               1,551               103                  7%

Utilities 302                  252                  (50)                   -17%

Maintenance 167                  120                  (47)                   -28%

Office & General Supplies 70                    70                    -                   0%

Advertising 206                  202                  (4)                     -2%

Professional Services 118                  140                  22                    18%

Information Technology 291                  289                  (2)                     -1%

Library & Instructional Supplies 188                  200                  12                    7%

Scholarships 485                  383                  (102)                 -21%

Scholarships - Concurrent Enrollment -                   392                  392                  NA

Travel 64                    4                       (60)                   -94%

Property & Liability Ins. 145                  142                  (3)                     -2%

Miscellaneous 406                  366                  (40)                   -10%

Total Expenditures 14,388            14,019            (369)                 -3%

Unrestricted Fund Surplus / (Deficit) (31)$                 320$                351$                1142%

Budget Forecast

More (Less)

vs. Budget

North Country Community College
August Forecast

For the year ending August 31, 2021

Budget Forecast

More (Less)

vs. Budget

BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL



NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
RESOLUTION 

 
WHEREAS the Associate VP of Student Life recommends the 

initial term appointment of Angela Brice, to the full-
time, 221-day, exempt appointment as Assistant 
Director of Student Life, for the 2021/22 academic 
year, at an annual salary of $52,720.  

 
WHEREAS the President hereby concurs in this 

recommendation, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED  that the North Country Community College Board of 

Trustees hereby approves the initial term 
appointment of Angela Brice, to the full-time, 221-
day, exempt appointment as Assistant Director of 
Student Life, for the 2021/22 academic year, at an 
annual salary of $52,720.  

 
This position is currently funded in the 2021/22 
operating budget.   

 
2021/22  
MOTION:   
ACTION:   
Yeas:  
Nays:    
Abstentions:  
DATE:   



 
 

 SARANAC LAKE . MALONE . TICONDEROGA 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Office of Human Resources . 23 Santanoni Avenue . PO Box 89 . Saranac Lake . NY . 12983  

www.nccc.edu . 518-891-2915 x1209 

August 19, 2021 
 
Ms. Angela Brice 
5605 Sutton Road 
Avon, NY 14414 
 
Dear Ms. Brice: 
 
Pending approval by the North Country Community College Board of Trustees at their August 
2021 meeting, I am pleased to offer you an initial term, full-time, 221-day exempt appointment 
as Assistant Director of Student Life for the 2021-2022 academic year.   
 
As a member of the North Country Community College Association of Professionals (NCCCAP) 
bargaining unit, your compensation and benefits are detailed in your collective bargaining 
agreement (CBA) between the College and NCCCAP.  Should you accept this position, your pay 
grade for this appointment is Step 14 on Schedule C of the 2021-2022 CBA, which is an 
annualized base salary of $52,720.   
 
Professional staff members shall not be assigned to more than two campus locations 
without their consent.  Your base campus is Saranac Lake. Your immediate and area 
supervisor is Kim Irland, Interim Associate VP of Student Life. 
 
To acknowledge the terms of your appointment, sign and return this Letter of Appointment no 
later than August 31, 2020. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Joe Keegan, 
President 
 
 
cc:  Personnel File / Payroll File 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________ 
Employee Signature     Date 



585-738-1357 | angelambrice@gmail.com

June 21, 2021 

Dear Search Committee, 

It is with considerable interest that I submit my application for the Assistant Director of Student Life. 
After reviewing the job description, I believe I am capable of fulfilling all responsibilities, providing 
leadership and collaboration within the Department of Student Life. 

Based on the position announcement I meet all of the required and preferred skills for this position: 
M.Ed. Master of Education in Mental Health Counseling, 2012
BA, Bachelor of Arts in Psychology, 2009
Over 10 years of experience in Student Affairs
Skills in developing and managing budgets, inventory systems and procedures
Experience with supporting students as they transition to College, Title IX regulations, project
management and staff training/supervision.
Ability to demonstrate intermediate to advanced marketing/branding skills
Provide support and direction to student groups, organizations and advisors through leadership
and organizational development.
Experience with evaluating and assessing student learning in co-curricular settings
Experience coordinating and implementing of campus wide engagement activities
Crisis intervention, management, and conflict resolution skills.
Experience advising Campus Activities Board and Student Government Organizations
Experience developing and implementing student leadership programs and civic
engagement opportunities

As indicated in my resume, I am currently the Assistant Director of Student Life at North Country 
Community College. My current role affords me the opportunity to enhance the overall student 
engagement experience by developing signature programs that are student centered, creating 
assessment that provides qualitative/quantitative data for benchmarking, and using student 
development theories to better support students. I have had the privilege to develop consciousness 
student leaders who have attended regional and national conference to better the overall student 
experience, while continuing to advocate for change within the campus community. Through my 
experience, I have been able to collaborate with faculty and staff to enhance learning inside and 
outside of the classroom.  

I am a dedicated professional with experience working through obstacles and managing change. My 
education, employment experiences, volunteer activities and passion are in alignment with the duties 
and responsibilities of the Assistant Director of Student Life position.  

Thank you for your time and consideration and I look forward to an opportunity to discuss how I can 
cont  to contribute to NCCC  success. 

Sincerely, 

Angela M. Brice 
Angela M. Brice 



 

585.738.1357 
angelambrice@gmail.com  

 

EDUCATION 

MAY 2012 
MASTERS OF EDUCATION, BRIDGEWATER STATE COLLEGE 

               LICENSED MENTAL HEALTH COUNSELOR CANDIDATE 
               CACREP ACCREDITATION 
 

MAY 2009 
BACHELORS OF ARTS, SUNY COLLEGE AT BROCKPORT 

 
SKILLS 

 
                 Student Conduct                                              Student Engagement                                     

          Residence Life and Housing                           Organized and Detailed                                                
          Community Development                              Communication and Collaboration 
          Student Advocacy and Support                     Emergency and Crisis Mangement 
          Staff Supervision                                              Budget Management 
          Leadership Development                                EREZLIFE 
          BANNER                                                             Civic Engagement  

 

EXPERIENCE 

AUGUST 2017  PRESENT  
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF STUDENT LIFE, NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE  

 Establishes and maintained procedures for clubs/organizations that are responsive to current student 
needs, efficient and effective 

 Maintains fiscal responsibility of budgets containing revenue and expenditures from multiple sources 
 Supervise and advise staff who manage student events, meetings, student activities, campus tours, 

intramural sports, and student newsletter 
 Advises student leaders on their curricular, co-curricular and career-related endeavors utilizing 

knowledge of relevant student development, leadership and career theories 
 Creates and implements strategic vision for Student Leadership Programs and Civic Engagement 

opportunities for students  
 Works closely with students to resolve concerns and communicates suggestions and problems to the 

appropriate departments and follow up with students providing next steps for resolution 
 Responsible for managing over 20 student organizations including events, meetings, fundraisers and 

budgets (using web surveys, Microsoft Excel, and Jotform) 
 Served as direct support to Associate Vice President of Student Affairs and Executive Director of 

Association 
 Supervises work and international assistantship students for the Student Life Office  



2 

Represents the college and department at local, regional, and national conferences in relation to 
student affairs, student leadership development, campus activities, and shared governance 

 Collaborates with faculty, staff and community agencies and resources to enhance the programmatic 
efforts for the current student population 

 Serves as a member of the Student Conduct Appeals Board as well as Title IX Investigator as needed 
 Coordinates, plans, executes, and evaluates multiple programs designed to facilitate growth in 

leadership skill and knowledge development and recognition including the Student Government 
leadership retreats and various leadership trainings  

 Developed and implements Mindfulness and Wellness based programmatic efforts at a college wide 
level via semesterly Wellness Challenge, Mindfulness Mondays and Gratitude Challenges  

 Serves as the Housing Officer overseeing all facets of the Residence Life Program 
 
 
JUNE 2015  AUGUST 2017 
ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR OF CAMPUS LIFE RESIDENTAL SERVICES, NORTH COUNTRY 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

 Coordinated housing selection and assignment processes for students, monitor and report housing 
occupancy and projections, and coordinate/approve room changes 

 Maintained accurate data in CAMS information system for all Residence Life operational needs  
 Served as a member of the Behavioral Intervention Team to coordinate student outreach and support 
 Developed and implemented recruitment, selection, training and evaluation of paraprofessional staff 
 Oversaw the On Call Professional Staff Rotation, including training, scheduling and provided on-call 

consultation and/or response for emergency situations and/or mental health emergencies after hours, 
and for the residence hall community 

 Served as an Administrative Hearing officer for violations of the Student Code of Conduct, as well as 
served as the Chair of the Conduct Board 

 Collaborated with the Dean of Students to develop short and long-range housing plans, implemented 
and developed departmental goals, vision and mission. 

 Provided training and support for faculty, staff and students 
 Developed and sustained liaison relationship with Information Technology, Facilities, 

Student Accounts, Financial Aid, Dining Services, Admissions, Athletics and Health Services 
 Served on college committees including but not limited to the Behavioral Intervention Team, Safety 

Committee, Long range Planning and Budget Committee and Professionals Promotions Committee 
 
JULY 2014  JULY 2015 
RESIDENCE HALL DIRECTOR, SUNY CORTLAND       

o Select, train, supervise, evaluate, and facilitated staff development for seven Resident Assistants, 
and Student Administrative Assistant through weekly staff and one-on-one meetings 

o Maintained a programming and staff development budget of over $2,500 
o Served as conduct officer and managed the conduct process for low and mid-level policy 

violations  
o Updated rooming assignments utilizing a Banner System 
o 

application and interview process 
o Co-Advised Residence Hall Association, working closely with the NCC 
o Oversaw and maintained a Residence Hall Association budget of $50,000, as well as practice 

record keeping procedures to balance the budget 
 
 



3 

AUGUST 2013 MAY 2014 
PSYCHOLOGY ADJUNCT FACULTY, SUNY SULLIVAN 

 Organized, prepared and revised (as needed) course materials 
o Ensured content level of course materials in exams has been covered in class 
o Designed, administered and graded exams and written papers 
o Incorporated a variety of teaching methodologies within the classroom 

 
JULY 2012  JULY 2014 
RESIDENT DIRECTOR, SUNY Sullivan     

o Responsible for the daily functioning and management of an upperclassman and first year 
residence hall with 350 students 

o Developed and implemented both August and January staff trainings 
o Fostered a residence hall environment conducive to residents' academic success and personal 

development 
o Maintained budgets for trainings ($5,000) and staff programming ($5,000) 
o Supervised, 8 Resident Assistants, 4 Assistant Resident Assistants and 3-7 work study students 
o Created a new programming model that encourages holistic student development 
o Adjudicated mid-level conduct cases 
o Co-facilitated Resident Assistant Staff recruitment 
o Advised Residence Hall Council and maintained a $ 8,000 budget 

 
AUGUST 2011  MAY 2012 
RESIDENT DIRECTOR, Dean College     

o Responsible for the daily functioning and management of an upperclassman and first year 
residence hall 

o Served on an on-call duty rotation, responding to crisis situations 
o Facilitated educational, social and safety programs that encourage a healthy transition into college 
o Supervised, Community Advisors directly as well as indirectly that are on staff  

 
JANUARY 2010  JULY 2011 
RESIDENCE LIFE COORDINATOR FOR LEADERSHIP & STUDENT INVOLVEMENT, BECKER COLLEGE   

o Responsible for the daily functioning and management of three first year residence halls  
o Served on an on-call duty rotation, responding to crisis situations 
o Directly supervised 4 Resident Assistants and designed/implemented the Resident Assistant duty 

schedule  
o Managed and work with a $3000 programming budget, with a staff of 14 RAs 

 
 

 

 

 
 



585.738.1357 
angelambrice@gmail.com  

References 
 
Shannon Warren 
Former Executive Director of the NCCC Association  
Saranac Lake, New York  12983 
(410) 63-0300 
 
Amy Porter 
Assistant Director of Housing & Res Life for New Student Enrollment and Conduct 
Northampton Community College  
3855 Green Pond Road 
Bethlehem, PA 18020 
(518) 421-4912 
 
Mary Ellen Chamberlain 
Director of Financial Aid 
North Country Community College 
23 Santanoni Ave, PO Box 89 
Saranac Lake, NY 12983 
518-891-2915 ext. 1285 



 

  
    

SARANAC LAKE | MALONE | TICONDEROGA  
  

North Country Community College   
President’s Report to the Board of Trustees  

August 27th, 2021 
 
Greetings to you all, 
 
I hope this finds you well and enjoying these late summer days. The rains have been 
bountiful, the days and evenings warm, and the fruits of the garden plenty. For those of 
us in education, that can only signal one thing…it is time to return to school.  
 
Students have been starting to trickle on campus and we will have our residential 
students coming later today and tomorrow. The semester commences this upcoming 
Monday, August 30th, 2021.  
 
We thank you for your ongoing support and look forward to a safe and successful year 
filled with great things for our students, our employees, and our communities.  
 
Stay well! 
 
 Joe  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 Board Matters 

 Board Bios and Photos: Many thanks to all who have submitted photos and 
bios to Stacie Hurwitch, Executive Assistant to the President. The Meet the 
Board page is looking good and if you have not had a chance to see it, I 
encourage you to hop over and do so… https://www.nccc.edu/about/board-
of-trustees/Board%20Biographies.html   

 Board Policies: Stacie Hurwitch is continuing to inventory of all approved 
Board of Trustees policies since the founding of the College. She is nearly ¾ 
complete with it and hope to have a report for you to review this semester. 

 
 Campus and External Relations  

Here are some highlights of events, contacts, and interactions that I have 
participated in over the last few weeks:   
 

Date  With  Location  
7/29/21 TruNorthern Federal Credit Union – Reopening Malone, NY 
8/2/21 College-wide Fall Reopening Plan/Forum Zoom 
8/2/21 Board of Supervisors | Proposed 2021-2022 Budget Etown, NY 
8/3/21 Essex County Supervisor Meeting | Joe Pete Wilson Zoom 
8/3/21 Former NCCC College President | Fred Smith Silver Lake, NY 

https://www.nccc.edu/about/board-of-trustees/Board%20Biographies.html
https://www.nccc.edu/about/board-of-trustees/Board%20Biographies.html


8/5/21 Board of Legislators | Proposed 2021-2022 Budget Malone, NY 
8/10/21 Board of Trustees, Chair | Steve Reed Saranac Lake, NY 
8/11/21 New Visions | Applied Engineering Meeting MS Teams 
8/11/21 MSCHE Annual Institutional Update Meeting MS Teams 
8/11/21 Fall 21 Informational Session with Students Zoom 
8/12/21 SUNY President’s Meeting Zoom 
8/18/21 JMZ | Huston Engineering – Campus Meeting Saranac Lake, NY 
8/16/21 Fall 21 Information Session with Students Zoom 
8/23/21 Correspond with Cali Brooks, Adirondack Foundation  Saranac Lake, NY 
8/24/21 Meeting with Jim Brooks Lake Placid, NY 
8/24/21 Meeting | Jay Rand Saranac Lake, NY 
8/24/21 NYCCAP Advocacy Meeting Zoom 
8/24/21 NCCC Virtual New Student Orientation  Zoom 
8/25/21 Opening Day | Welcome Back Faculty & Staff Meeting Hybrid 
8/25/21 Fall 21 Information Session with Students Zoom 
8/26/21 NCCC Retirees Breakfast Saranac Lake, NY 
8/26/21 Fall 21 Information Session with Students Zoom 
8/27/21 World University Games | Meeting Zoom 

 
 Fall 2021 Enrollment 

The Enrollment team is in the final recruitment push for the Fall 2021 semester. 
Dubbed, the Last Chance 2 Enroll, it will continue through the upcoming week.  
Preliminary numbers suggest a decline in enrollment, but whether that remains 
and/or how much should be clear after the verification period which ends after the 
3rd week of classes. The team will soon pivot and begin preparing for Spring 22 and 
Fall 22 classes.  
 

 2021-2022 Budget 
Essex County and Franklin County approved our 2021-2022 budget earlier this 
month. Many thanks to all who played a part in its construction and to the Board for 
your support. It now goes to SUNY for review and approval, which we expect will 
take place over the next month or so. 
 

 Foundation 
The search for a Foundation and Development Director continues. The Search 
Committee has moved to the interview phase and the next steps will involve 
recommending and inviting finalists to campus, including meeting with the campus 
community, the Foundation Board, and you, the Board of Trustees.   
 

 Strategic Plan   
Our administrative team continues to prioritize initiatives and explore how various 
departments/areas can contribute to help put those into action. Some initiatives 
underway including:  
 Ongoing Professional Development (several professional development 

opportunities for the faculty have been offered over the summer break),  
 New Academic Programs (the AS Business Administration – Healthcare 

Administration track remains at NYSED; new programs in graphics and 
animation, and healthcare related fields are being explored; through Perkins 



funding we are able to continue to support Selina LeMay Klippel’s position as 
a CTE Coordinator), 

 Create 1-2 state-of-the-art classrooms to support high-flex model of teaching 
and learning (this work is completed on six (6) classrooms and training the 
faculty and others in using it is slated for the next couple of weeks), 

 Streamlining and improving the College’s student onboarding: through the 
North Country Navigator program is underway,  

 Submitted a second grant request to modernize Nursing Labs on all three 
campuses as well as a grant for additional scholarship funding for non-
traditional students,  

 Alternative revenue streams: exploring how the Foundation and College can 
rethink the Foundation and its role in helping the College remain sustainable, 

 Improved Institutional Research capabilities: Initial steps include 
standardized data needs for all academic programs as part of ongoing 
program assessment, and 

 Reinvest in health careers and health science programs: aforementioned 
nursing lab modernization and new academic program work.  

 
 Opportunities and Partnerships 

 Community Projects Funding requests: no update on the request to update 
our nursing labs proposal for $975K. Rep. Stefanik moved it to the House 
Appropriations Committee as one of ten projects from her office. 

 Congressionally Directed Spending proposals: Senator Schumer advanced 
our two requests for funding to the Senate Committee on Appropriations. As a 
reminder they are for 1) the nursing labs renovation proposal for $1.8M, and 
2) $100K to fund non-traditional scholarships for the 2022 year. Both 
requests align with our strategic plan objectives. 

 Perkins Grant (2021-2022): no updates on our Perkins Grant application 
though we expect it to be approved. The grant is aligned with previous 
assessments and with strategic objectives in areas related to new academic 
programs (CTE Coordinator), improved IR reporting on alumni, career 
services supports, and professional development for faculty members related 
to supporting diverse learning styles.  

 The North Country CC-Workforce Development Partnership: We are 
planning to hold our next meeting early this Fall 2021 semester.  
 

 COVID-19 Matters 
If the COVID-19 pandemic has taught us anything, it is the need to be flexible and 
prepared to shift at a moment’s notice. The strengthening of the Delta variant of the 
coronavirus and the subsequent declaration by the CDC of our counties as areas of 
‘high” transmission, coupled with the FDA’s move to grant full approval of the 
Pfizer/BioNTech vaccine prompted us to make changes to our Fall 2021 reopening 
plan.  Here is a brief summary of what we are planning for and a link to the details 
https://www.nccc.edu/fall-2021/: 
 Masking: we returned to universal masking when inside buildings with the 

exception of one’s personal space. Masks will be available at the major entry 
points of College buildings.  

https://www.nccc.edu/fall-2021/


 Vaccine Requirements: the granting of full approval for the Pfizer/BioNTech 
vaccine triggered the New York State mandate requiring students attending, 
residing, or participating in any on-campus activity, including classes at a 
SUNY school, including North Country, to be vaccinated against COVID-19 
(either completion of a two-dose series of Moderna or Pfizer vaccine, or the 
one dose Johnson and Johnson vaccine). All students who expect to be on 
campus in whatever form, are required to be fully vaccinated against COVID-
19 by Monday, September 27th, 2021.  

 Protocols and Practices:  
 COVID-19 Mandatory Testing: no longer required for those who are 

vaccinated. It will be required weekly for unvaccinated students, and we 
expect it to lessen as more students become vaccinated. Those granted an 
exemption from the vaccine will be required to test weekly. 

 COVID-19 Daily Screening: the electronic version is no longer required 
for employees, students, or visitors, though all are encouraged to self-
screen.   

 Physical Distancing: New York has retained social distancing guidelines of 
6’ for those who are not vaccinated inside all College buildings and outside 
on any College property where distancing cannot be maintained. As with 
testing and masking, we are trusting our employees and colleagues to 
follow those guidelines on the honor system. 

 COVID-19 Cleaning and Sanitation Protocols: these are relaxed. We will 
assess which have value, retain those and no longer perform the others.  
 

While we expect and hope that these measures will contribute to our community 
remaining healthy and safe, there remains much uncertainty about the course the 
virus will take, particularly as the colder weather returns and we begin to spend 
more time indoors. We will continue to plan for possibilities of tightening of 
restrictions in the future if need be.  

 
 Facilities  

Rick Heath and the Facilities crew have been very active in readying us for Fall 2021. 
In addition to the usual grounds and maintenance work, they have been involved 
with:  
 Classroom and IT Upgrades: In a joint effort between IT and Facilities, we 

were able to complete classroom upgrades this summer providing state-of-
the-art high flex classrooms on each campus. This level of upgrade and 
investment has been unprecedented and thanks to federal stimulus funds that 
allowed for investments in technologies to support distance learning, we were 
able to do. Many thanks to all who made this happen.  

 JMZ: JMZ Architects have started the scoping study for us. Craig Huston, of 
Huston Engineering conducted a walk-through of our SL and Malone 
campuses last week, focusing on HVAC needs. Karin Green, of JMZ, is 
expected to be on campus next Wednesday, September 1 or Thursday, 
September 2 to look more closely at the SL science labs project and the 
nursing lab upgrades in SL and Malone. The plan is for them to return once 



the faculty do to meet with departments, especially Nursing and Science, to 
gather their input.   

 Facilities Inventory: Our Facilities Department has largely completed the 
inventory of our campuses, identifying the current state of the infrastructure 
and cataloging it uniformly. This has been quite a project but one we hope will 
pay dividends in the future.  

 Classroom Building Hallway: New lights and ceiling tiles 
 Malone Campus Mailroom: renovated.  

 
 Information Technology (IT)  

Scott Harwood and the IT Department have been very active preparing for the new 
academic year as well. We are indebted to them for their work on many projects from 
the high-flex classrooms to updating the switching that will permit hosting that 
technology.  
 Student IT Onboarding: last year laid bare the need for more intensive IT 

onboarding of students to assure that they are equipped and prepared 
technologically (e.g. access to the internet, access to a computer) to be 
successful in class. The IT team has been actively assisting with this. 

 IT Staffing:  
 a newly hired Student Support professional, Kelly O’Shields has joined us 
 Scott is preparing to hire a second Help Desk Technician to support our 

students, faculty, and staff, and 
 preparing to fill a vacancy for a Hardware Support position.  

 Academic Technology: See above under Facilities.  
 Infrastructure: Capital projects to upgrade switching in Saranac Lake is 

mostly complete. An upgrade of our telephones and new cabling to support 
improved wireless in the residence halls is also taking place.  

 
 NCCCAP 

Negotiations 
Negotiations with NCCCAP for a successor contract to the 2019-2021 CBA took a 
hiatus in August, permitting us to take the time and focus on wrapping up our self-
study and prepare for the fall. They have been going well and we expect them to 
continue into through the fall.  
 
2019-2021 Contract Extension 
A one-year extension of the NCCCAP contract was approved by both Essex County 
and Franklin County earlier this month. This extended contract will cover the 2021-
2022 academic year. 
 

 Middle States/SUNY/NYSED  
MSCHE Updates  
On Tuesday, August 24th, 2021, Sarah Maroun, our Interim VPAA and Accreditation 
Liaison Officer, submitted the full self-study report and supporting evidence to 
Middle States and our self-study team leader, Dr. Kristy Bishop. Like so many things 
at the College, the report represents the work of the collective – our campus 
community - and reflects upon and catalogues our compliance with the MSCHE 



standards. Many thanks to all who played a role and to Sarah for efforts in 
shepherding this process on behalf of the College.  
 
SUNY 
In SUNY matters: 
 Vaccinations Plan: Earlier this week, the SUNY BoT approved the COVID-19 

vaccination policy which you can find here 
(https://www.suny.edu/sunypp/documents.cfm?doc_id=900)  

 SUNY, and North Country CC extend our best wishes to Governor Hochul as 
she assumes the reins of power in New York State and becomes the first 
female to serve as governor of the state. She has been supportive of SUNY, 
including community colleges, and we are expecting that she will continue to 
be.    

 
 

That’s all for now. Gratefully yours,  
 

  
 
Joe Keegan   
President  
North Country Community 

https://www.suny.edu/sunypp/documents.cfm?doc_id=900


NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
WHEREAS the Assistant Dean of Institutional Research and 

Support recommends the initial term appointment of 
Terrance Kemp to the full time, twelve-month exempt 
position as Academic Technology Coordinator, for the 
2021/22 academic year at an annual salary of $64,895,  

 
WHEREAS the President hereby concurs in this recommendation, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED  that the North Country Community College Board of 

Trustees hereby approves the initial term appointment 
of Terrance Kemp to the full time, twelve-month exempt 
position as Academic Technology Coordinator, for the 
2021/22 academic year at an annual salary of $64,895,  

 
This position is currently funded in the 2021/22 
operating budget.   

 
 
2021/22  
MOTION:   
ACTION:   
Yeas:  
Nays:    
Abstentions:  
DATE:   



 
 

 SARANAC LAKE . MALONE . TICONDEROGA 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Office of Human Resources . 23 Santanoni Avenue . PO Box 89 . Saranac Lake . NY . 12983  

www.nccc.edu . 518-891-2915 x1209 

August 19, 2021 
 
Mr. Terrance Kemp 
50 Shepard Ave 
Saranac Lake, NY 12983 
 
 
Dear Mr. Kemp: 
 
Pending approval by the North Country Community College Board of Trustees at their August 
2021 meeting, I am pleased to offer you an initial term, full-time, twelve-month (261 days) 
exempt appointment as Academic Technology Coordinator for the 2021-2022 academic year.  
 
As a member of the North Country Community College Association of Professionals (NCCCAP) 
bargaining unit, your compensation and benefits are detailed in your collective bargaining 
agreement (CBA) between the College and NCCCAP.  Should you accept this appointment, your 
pay grade for this appointment is Step 23 on Schedule C of the 2021-2022 CBA, which is an 
annualized base salary of $64,895.  
 
Professional staff members shall not be assigned to more than two campus locations 
without their consent.  Your base campus is Saranac Lake.  Your immediate supervisor is 
Scott Harwood, Assistant Dean of Institutional Research and Computer Support.  Your area 
supervisor is Joe Keegan, NCCC President. 
 
To acknowledge the terms of your appointment, sign and return this Letter of Appointment no 
later than August 31, 2021. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Joe Keegan, 
President 
 
cc:  Personnel File / Payroll File 
 
_________________________________  _________________ 
Employee Signature     Date 



























AUGUST 2021 BOARD REPORT 
 

ROBERT RATHBUN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 

BOOKSTORE: 

Mary Riley joined us during July through October 1, 2021 to assist with student 
purchases and bookstore sales. 

Candy Merritt, bookstore manager, Saranac Lake 
Kim Gonyo, bookstore manager, Malone 
 
The system put in place to allow students to order, view and pay for their materials is 
working well.  We have a separate company that hosts the website for this activity. 
The bookstore is “open” in the sense that students can come into the bookstore, but no 
more than 3 at a time. 
Most students are booking appointments to pick up their books from the loading dock, 
or making appointments to pick up their books in the store. 
There are some shipping delays with required textbooks that is causing some anxiety. 
The other issue, one that we have encountered numerous times in other areas, is that 
we have discovered unresolved credit balances with 4 different publishers. 
With our contracted bookkeeper these credit balances are being addressed but it takes 
time.   
 
RESIDENCES: 
 
In late July of this year, Maryssa Romeo joined the Association as the new Associate 
Director of Residence Life & Housing.   
Obviously this is a very busy time of year for both Angela and Maryssa.  The housing 
numbers provided to me look very strong; I do know that several students have agreed 
to double booking rooms in exchange for a lower housing expense. 
My understanding, as I write this, is that we have 85 students signed up for housing. 
It is a fluid situation, but my expectation is that we will be full this semester. 
Covid-19 and its variants pose the greatest challenge.  I know that Maryssa and Angela 
will be focused on ensuring that the students abide by campus policy outlined by NCCC. 
 
FOOD SERVICE: 
 
The NCCC Association was issued a permit to operate a food service establishment by 
the New York State Board of Health, Saranac Lake office, on August 5 2021.  I want the 
board to know that the appropriate permits have been issued. 



 
As regards our food service program, I presented a detailed outline separately.  
However, I do wish to introduce the team that is in place. 
 
Sam Beaulieu – Sous Chef; a returning employee from ADC.  Sam is taking on the 
responsibility of ordering, developing menus with me, sanitation and food safety (daily 
tracking of key variables, such as equipment temperatures, dish machine rinse 
temperature, and the 3 bay sink rinse sanitation recording).  He will also be developing 
our 3 week menu rotation. 
 
Sam Maitland – Lead Cook; also a returning employee from ADC.  Sam will be 
handling the bulk of food preparation and service for morning and lunch service. 
 
Montana Burrell – Weekend Supervisor and Dining Room Associate.  Montana also 
returns from ADC.  She has an important role in taking on the responsibility for 
management of the dining hall on the weekends. 
 
Tito Valentin – Garde Manger.  Tito is a new hire, and a veteran of the restaurant 
scene locally.  I am counting on him to manage the production for the salad bars and 
deli. 
 
The additional staff I need I am counting on recruiting from our student population. 
A number of students have indicated interest in working at the dining hall.  As they get 
settled in over the next two weeks, I will be ramping up recruitment efforts.  My goal is 
5 to 6 part-time staff, each working 8-10 hours per week. 
 
In the meantime, I will be spending a lot of my time in the kitchen supporting Sam and 
working the POS.  Which brings me to my last area of concern: 
 
The Atrium Point of Sale system is in the process of being installed.  Admittedly we are 
not exactly where we would like to be, but our IT department, most Scott Harwood, 
have been really stretched thin over the last month.  I am working with Scott as he is 
available to get the information system part of the dining hall up and running. 
 
I can assure everyone that students will be fed, and their consumption of food will be 
manually tracked if indeed the POS is not functional on August 26.  There may be a 
slight delay in taking cash and credit card transactions. 



NCCC Foundation 

Director’s Report 

The NCCC Foundation, in addition to the $100,000 Opportunity Scholarship for adult students, 
 has awarded $42,000 in student scholarships.

- Submitted by Diana Fortune, August 2021


	A- Agenda 08272021
	B - Minutes
	C - VPAA
	Academic Planning, Programs and Policies:
	 Academic Planning
	 Middle States

	o MSCHE Self-Study: We submitted the Self-Study document and supporting evidence in preparation for the virtual visit on October 4-6, 2021.  A seven-member team, led by Dr. Kristy Bishop will conduct meetings over the course of those three days. Addit...
	Grants and Experiments:

	C1 - Dorr, Summer Inital Term
	1 Dorr
	2 Dorr
	3 Dorr
	letterofinterest for NCCC.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Summer recommendation.pdf
	NCCC packet.pdf
	NCCC packet.pdf
	donald's rec.pdf
	Binder8.pdf
	Binder7.pdf
	student evaluations
	Binder6.pdf
	bruce class eval.pdf
	packet.pdf
	Dorr, Summer - Evaluation - 2018-19
	Dorr, Summer - Supervisor Eval - SP18
	lisa's eval





	Summer Dorr CV, NCCC, JUNE




	C2- McGrath, Robin Temporary Term
	1 McGrath, Robin
	2 McGrath, Robin
	3 McGrath, Robin resume

	D - VPME
	D1 - Tuthill, Amy Initial Term
	1 Tuthill, Amy
	2 Tuthill, Amy
	3 Tuthill, Amy

	E - CFO
	2020-21 Financial Forecast - August
	2020-21 Financial Statements - July
	Interim CFO Report to the Board
	July Cover Sheet

	F1 - Brice, Angela Initial Term
	1 Brice
	2 Brice
	3 Brice

	G - President
	G1 - Kemp, Terry Initial Term
	1 Kemp
	2 kemp
	3 Kemp

	H - NCCC Association
	I - NCCC Foundation



